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calcium hydroxide (lime), carbon, 
chromium compounds, diethylene 
glycol, dolime, dolomite, ethylene 
glycol, epoxy powder, ferroboron, 
ferrosilicon, ferrovanadium, graphite, 
O2 cryogenic liquid, silicon manganese, 
synthetic lubricating fluid, biocides in 
violation of EPCRA section 312 , 42 
U.S.C. 11022, and 40 CFR part 370. 

Pursuant to 40 CFR 22.45(b)(2)(iii), 
the following is a list of facilities at 
which Gerdau self-disclosed violations 
of CWA section 311: 225 Elm Street, 
P.O. Box 309, Perth Amboy, New Jersey 
08862 and North Crossman Road, 
Sayreville, New Jersey 08871. Gerdau 
also disclosed a violation of CWA 
sections 301 and 402 at the Sayreville, 
New Jersey. 

In addition, Gerdau self-disclosed 
violations of EPCRA section 312 at its 
facility located in the State of New 
Jersey. 

EPA determined that Gerdau met the 
criteria set out in the Audit Policy for 
a 100% waiver of the gravity component 
of the penalty. As a result, EPA 
proposes to waive the gravity based 
penalty ($439,622) and proposes a 
settlement penalty amount of forty-three 
thousand, five hundred and sixty-five 
dollars ($43, 565). This is the amount of 
the economic benefit gained by Gerdau, 
attributable to their delayed compliance 
with the CWA, RCRA, CAA and EPCRA 
regulations. Gerdau has agreed to pay 
this amount. EPA and Gerdau 
negotiated and signed an administrative 
consent agreement, following the 
Consolidated Rules of Practice, 40 CFR 
22.13(b), on March 11, 2003 (In Re: 
Gerdau Ameristeel, Inc., d/b/a Gerdau 
Ameristeel, Perth Amboy and Gerdau 
Ameristeel, Sayerville, Docket Nos. 
RCRA–HQ–2001–6009, CWA–HQ–
2001–6009, CAA–HQ–2001–6009, 
EPCRA–HQ–2001–6009). This consent 
agreement is subject to public notice 
and comment under CWA sections 309, 
33 U.S.C. 311(b)(6), 33 U.S.C. 
1321(b)(6). 

Under CWA section 311(b)(6)(A), 33 
U.S.C. 1321(b)(6)(A), any owner, 
operator, or person in charge of a vessel, 
onshore facility, or offshore facility from 
which oil is discharged in violation of 
the CWA section 311(b)(3), 33 U.S.C. 
1321 (b)(3), or who fails or refuses to 
comply with any regulations that have 
been issued under CWA section 311 (j), 
33 U.S.C. 1321(j), may be assessed an 
administrative civil penalty of up to 
$137,500 by EPA. Class II proceedings 
under CWA section 311(b)(6) are 
conducted in accordance with 40 CFR 
part 22. 

Under CWA sections 301 and 402, 
persons are not allowed to discharge 
pollutants to waters of the United States 

without first obtaining a permit. Any 
person who fails to comply with 
sections 301 and 402, or who fails or 
refuses to comply with any regulations 
or permits that have been issued under 
CWA sections 301 and 402, may be 
assessed an administrative civil penalty 
of up to $137,500 by EPA. Class II 
proceedings under CWA section 301 
and 402 are conducted in accordance 
with 40 CFR part 22. 

Under CAA section 113(d), the 
Administrator may issue an 
administrative order assessing a civil 
penalty against any person who has 
violated an applicable requirement of 
the CAA, including any rule, order, 
waiver, permit or plan. Proceedings 
under CAA section 113(d) are 
conducted in accordance with 40 CFR 
part 22. 

Under EPCRA section 325, the 
Administrator may issue an 
administrative order assessing a civil 
penalty against any person who has 
violated applicable emergency planning 
or right to know requirements, or any 
other requirement of EPCRA. 
Proceedings under EPCRA section 325 
are conducted in accordance with 40 
CFR part 22. 

Under RCRA section 3008, the 
Administrator may issue an 
administrative order assessing a civil 
penalty against any person who has 
violated RCRA or its implementing 
regulations. Proceedings under RCRA 
section 3008 are conducted in 
accordance with 40 CFR part 22. 

The procedures by which the public 
may comment on a proposed Class II 
penalty order, or participate in a Clean 
Water Act Class II penalty proceeding, 
are set forth in 40 CFR 22.45. The 
deadline for submitting public comment 
on this proposed final order is June 30, 
2003. All comments will be transferred 
to the Environmental Appeals Board 
(‘‘EAB’’) of EPA for consideration. The 
powers and duties of the EAB are 
outlined in 40 CFR 22.4(a). 

Pursuant to CWA section 311(b)(6)(C), 
EPA will not issue an order in this 
proceeding prior to the close of the 
public comment period.

Dated: May 23, 2003. 

Robert A. Kaplan, 
Acting Director, Multimedia Enforcement 
Division, Office of Enforcement and 
Compliance Assurance.
[FR Doc. 03–13567 Filed 5–29–03; 8:45 am] 
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SUMMARY: The Federal Communications 
Commission, as part of its continuing 
effort to reduce paperwork burden 
invites the general public and other 
Federal agencies to take this 
opportunity to comment on the 
following information collection(s), as 
required by the Paperwork Reduction 
Act of 1995, Public Law 104–13. An 
agency may not conduct or sponsor a 
collection of information unless it 
displays a current valid control number. 
No person shall be subject to any 
penalty for failing to comply with a 
collection of information subject to the 
Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA) that 
does not display a valid control number. 
Comments are requested concerning (a) 
whether the proposed collection of 
information is necessary for the proper 
performance of the functions of the 
Commission, including whether the 
information shall have practical utility; 
(b) the accuracy of the Commission’s 
burden estimate; (c) ways to enhance 
the quality, utility, and clarity of the 
information collected; and (d) ways to 
minimize the burden of the collection of 
information on the respondents, 
including the use of automated 
collection techniques or other forms of 
information technology.
DATES: Written comments should be 
submitted on or before July 29, 2003. If 
you anticipate that you will be 
submitting comments, but find it 
difficult to do so within the period of 
time allowed by this notice, you should 
advise the contact listed below as soon 
as possible.
ADDRESSES: Direct all comments to Les 
Smith, Federal Communications 
Commission, Room 1–A804, 445 12th 
Street, SW., Washington, DC 20554, or 
via the Internet to Leslie.Smith@fcc.gov
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For 
additional information or copies of the 
information collection(s) contact Les 
Smith at 202–418–0217 or via the 
Internet at Leslie.Smith@fcc.gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

OMB Control Number: 3060–0580. 
Title: Section 76.1710, Operator 

Interests in Video Programming. 
Form Number: N/A. 
Type of Review: Revision of a 

currently approved collection. 
Respondents: Business or other for-

profit entities. 
Number of Respondents: 1,500. 
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Estimated Time per Response: 15 
hours. 

Frequency of Response: 
Recordkeeping. 

Total Annual Burden: 22,500 hours. 
Total Annual Costs: None. 
Needs and Uses: 47 CFR 76.1710 

(formerly 76.504) requires cable 
operators to maintain records in their 
public file for a period of three years 
regarding the nature and extent of their 
attributable interests in all video 
programming services. The records must 
be made available to members of the 
public, local franchising authorities, and 
the Commission on reasonable notice 
and during regular business hours. The 
Commission and local franchising 
authorities will review the information 
to monitor compliance with channel 
occupancy limits in respective local 
franchise areas.
Federal Communications Commission. 
Marlene H. Dortch, 
Secretary.
[FR Doc. 03–13464 Filed 5–29–03; 8:45 am] 
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SUMMARY: The Federal Communications 
Commission, as part of its continuing 
effort to reduce paperwork burden 
invites the general public and other 
Federal agencies to take this 
opportunity to comment on the 
following information collection(s), as 
required by the Paperwork Reduction 
Act of 1995, Public Law 104–13. An 
agency may not conduct or sponsor a 
collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid control 
number. No person shall be subject to 
any penalty for failing to comply with 
a collection of information subject to the 
Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA) that 
does not display a valid control number. 
Comments are requested concerning (a) 
whether the proposed collection of 
information is necessary for the proper 
performance of the functions of the 
Commission, including whether the 
information shall have practical utility; 
(b) the accuracy of the Commission’s 
burden estimate; (c) ways to enhance 
the quality, utility, and clarity of the 
information collected; and (d) ways to 
minimize the burden of the collection of 
information on the respondents, 
including the use of automated 
collection techniques or other forms of 
information technology.

DATES: Written comments should be 
submitted on or before June 30, 2003. If 
you anticipate that you will be 
submitting comments, but find it 
difficult to do so within the period of 
time allowed by this notice, you should 
advise the contacts listed below as soon 
as possible.
ADDRESSES: Direct all comments to Kim 
A. Johnson, Office of Management and 
Budget, Room 10236 NEOB, 
Washington, DC 20503, (202) 395–3562 
or via Internet at 
Kim_A._Johnson@omb.eop.gov, and Les 
Smith, Federal Communications 
Commission, Room 1–A804, 445 12th 
Street, SW., Washington, DC 20554 or 
via Internet to Leslie.Smith@fcc.gov.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For 
additional information or copies of the 
information collections contact Les 
Smith at 202–418–0217 or via Internet 
at Leslie.Smith@fcc.gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
Commission has requested emergency 
OMB review of this collection with an 
approval by April 14, 2003.

OMB Control Number: 3060–1038. 
Type of Review: New collection. 
Title: Digital Television Transition 

Information Questionnaires. 
Form Number: N/A. 
Respondents: Business or other for-

profit entities. 
Number of Respondents: 844. 
Estimated Time per Response: 4 to 24 

hours. 
Frequency of Response: One-time 

reporting requirement. 
Total Annual Burden: 4,823 hours. 
Total Annual Cost: $251,400. 
Needs and Uses: In the 

Telecommunications Act of 1996, 
Congress directed that every broadcaster 
be given a second channel for digital 
operations. At the end of the transition, 
broadcasters’ analog channels will be 
returned to the government. Congress 
set a target date of December 31, 2006 
for the end of the transition, although 
that date can be extended if 85% of 
viewers in a particular market do not 
have access to the digital signals. In 
addition, at the end of the transition the 
broadcast spectrum will contract from 
channels 2–69 to channels 2–51. This 
108 MHz of spectrum (channels 52–69) 
can then be used by advanced wireless 
services and public safety authorities. 
There are several key building blocks to 
a successful transition. First, content—
consumers must perceive something 
significantly different than what they 
have in analog. Second, distribution—
the content must be delivered to 
consumers in a simple and convenient 
way. Third, equipment—equipment 
must be capable, affordable and 

consumer-friendly. And fourth, 
education—consumers must be 
educated about what digital television 
is, and what it can do for them. These 
information requests are designed to 
gather data in these key areas.
Federal Communications Commission. 
Marlene H. Dortch, 
Secretary.
[FR Doc. 03–13465 Filed 5–29–03; 8:45 am] 
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SUMMARY: The Federal Communications 
Commission, as part of its continuing 
effort to reduce paperwork burden 
invites the general public and other 
Federal agencies to take this 
opportunity to comment on the 
following information collection(s), as 
required by the Paperwork Reduction 
Act of 1995, Public Law 104–13. An 
agency may not conduct or sponsor a 
collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid control 
number. No person shall be subject to 
any penalty for failing to comply with 
a collection of information subject to the 
Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA) that 
does not display a valid control number. 
Comments are requested concerning (a) 
whether the proposed collection of 
information is necessary for the proper 
performance of the functions of the 
Commission, including whether the 
information shall have practical utility; 
(b) the accuracy of the Commission’s 
burden estimate; (c) ways to enhance 
the quality, utility, and clarity of the 
information collected; and (d) ways to 
minimize the burden of the collection of 
information on the respondents, 
including the use of automated 
collection techniques or other forms of 
information technology.

DATES: Persons wishing to comment on 
this (these) information collection(s) 
should submit comments by July 29, 
2003. If you anticipate that you will be 
submitting comments, but find it 
difficult to do so within the period of 
time allowed by this notice, you should 
advise the contact listed below as soon 
as possible.

ADDRESSES: Direct all Paperwork 
Reduction Act (PRA) comments to 
Judith B. Herman, Federal 
Communications Commission, 445 12th 
Street, SW., Room 1–C804, Washington, 
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